2
‘%flﬁrn B“W\@

Msukaligwa Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023



Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

General Information

Grading of local authority

Accounting Officer

Postal address

Bankers

Auditors

Attorneys

Rounding
Website

Contact number

4
Mr. M. Kunene (Appointed 12 August 2022)
Mr P.J.Nhlabathi (Appointed 01 December 2022)

Civic Centre

C/o Kerk and Taute Street
Ermelo

2350

Civic Centre

C/o Kerk and Taute Street
Ermelo

2350

PO Box 48
Ermelo
2350

First National Bank Limited

Auditor-General of South Africa
Registered Auditors

Julie Mahommed Attorneys
Maphanga Attorneys
Mhlongo Khumalo Attorneys
Mohlala Attorneys

Motimele Attorneys
Sefalafala Attorneys

Sibeko Incorporated
TMN Kgomo and Associates
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest R1

www.msukaligwa.gov.za

Tel: 017 8611 Msuka (086 116 7852)
Fax: 017 801 3851



Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Abbreviations

ACFO Acting Chief Financial Officer
AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa
CFO Chie

COID ] &H;@nsatlon for Occupatidpal Injuries and Diseases
COVID 19 Corona\{/irus 201@\/\/\
DCSSL Q%B%tmﬂﬁ 0 CBommunity Safety, Security And Liaison
GRAP Genera&ﬁg@omﬁgd%\éco%n ng Practice
GSDM Ud\’tO\' Wi icipality
Mpu
IAS International Accounting Standards
IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance Officers
IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards
LG SETA Local Government Sectoral and Training Authority
MMC Member of the Mayoral Committee
MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act
MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant
MPAC Municipal Public Accounts Committee
MSA Municipal Systems Act
mSCOA Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts
PPP Public Private Partnership
SDL Skills Development Levy
UIF Unemployment Insurance Fund
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Audit Committee Report

1. Audit committee members and attendance

The Audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet four times a year, as per its approved terms of
reference. During the current year 07 meetin d.

—— Audited

Name of membper %Mmber of mietings ttended
F. Mudau az- 30 7 A

N. Maseko 282 6

P. Mangoma 7 frica

M. Mmapheto ﬁera\ south A

P.B Mosomane &\qutg \anéa Busines
Mpumatar 57
| b S
2. Audit committee responsibility

The Audit committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166(2)(a) of the MFMA.

The Audit committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

3. The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal controls applied by the municipality over financial and risk management is effective, efficient, and
transparent. In line with the MFMA and the King IV report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal audit provides the
audit committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective, and further provides
recommendations where deficiencies are identified. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the
identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of the
Internal audit, the Audit report on the annual financial statements and the implementation of the action plan in addressing
issued raised in the AG report, it was noted there were matters reported that indicate material deficiencies in the system of
internal control or any deviation therefrom. Accordingly, the Audit Committee has made recommendations to these deficiencies
and we can report that the system of internal controls over financial reporting for the period under review was fairly efficient and
effective. .

The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the MFMA and the Division of Revenue
Act.

The Audit committee is fairly satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly report prepared and issued by the
Accounting Officer of the municipality during the year under review.

4, Internal audit

The Audit committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks
pertinent to the municipality and its audits.
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Accounting Office's Report

10. Public Private P

"}\ud\’ted

In accordance with the PPP agreemeB){he Contractor shall pen a separate account with a bank registered in the Republic of
South Africa, for the purpose of administering and separate safekeeping of:

. moneys Heposited as excgss surpl &;
S AR

o any foreign exchange S;
. any servide credits; and nca
. any penalijes for |ater servei%e rﬁﬁb@ﬂﬁ} nit
itof iness =
The municipality has o&gg erfts? B_\_"‘,SJ-#——"'"

agreements:
The annual financial st ents set out from page 10 - 132, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2023.

Mr. M. Kunene
Accounting Officer
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022
Restated*
Assets X ud“ed
Current Assets B\]
Inventdries g)y\/\ 7 23,589,169 13,003,712
Receivables from exchange transg ions™ - 8810 167,834,179 145,467,135
Receivables from no@ﬁﬁ&h‘a‘m\g’e transactions 9&10 65,189,392 59,846,831
VAT receivable Afr'\Ca 11 131,424,790 105,428,352
Cash and cash equiva&gnt\s‘era\ gouth 12 78,704,967 9,673,827
duor € ines
AU ~alangd Bust 466,742,497 333,419,857
MpUMZZ ==
Non-Current-Assgts
Investment property 3 181,143,053 178,381,508
Property, plant and equipment 4 2,651,634,315 2,5655,795,186
Intangible assets 5 15,786 61,916
Heritage assets 6 174,895 174,895
2,832,968,049 2,734,413,505
Total Assets 3,299,710,546 3,067,833,362
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 13 - 1,179,875
Payables from exchange transactions 14 1,572,148,720 1,439,945,514
Consumer deposits 15 20,450,245 19,243,836
Employee benefit obligation 16 3,864,000 5,605,000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 17 44,723,686 1,593,484
1,641,186,651 1,467,567,709
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 16 68,931,001 68,197,000
Provisions 19 95,319,376 81,932,632
164,250,377 150,129,532

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Accumulated surplus
Total Net Assets

* See Note 57
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1,805,437,028

1,617,697,241

1,494,273,518

1,450,136,121

1,494,273,518
1,494,273,518

1,450,136,121
1,450,136,121
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

Restated Opening Balance
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

Balance at 01 July 2021 as restdieaclited

Changes in net assets By
Surplus/(Deficit) forlthe year

W

Total changes

2023 -11- 30

Opening balance as|previously reported

Adjustments ica
Prior year adjustme Spuditor General Sputh Ag‘;t
Restated* Balance tq\h&;mmmgae&hﬁwess
Changes in net asse e —
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

Total changes
Balance at 30 June 2023

* See Note 57
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1,260,260,189
173,513,684

1,260,260,189
173,513,684

1,433,773,873

16,362,248

1,433,773,873

16,362,248

16,362,248

16,362,248

1,309,756,908

140,379,215

1,309,756,908
140,379,215

1,450,136,123

44,137,395

1,450,136,123

44,137,395

44,137,395

44,137,395

1,494,273,518

1,494,273,518




.sukaligwa Local Municipality

Registration number MP302)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
vl
Statement of Fingncial PErforrrglu:é\ted
Revenue By 2 [
Revenue from exdhange )
transactions 2323 ‘- 3 0
Service charges 411,350,000 26,915,000 438,265,000 404,842,072 (33,422,028)
Rental of facilities afnd equipment 2, 70? g)&ﬁh AftE17000 2,851,000 2,921,300 70,300
Agency services Auditor Genera ess Unit |- - 6,885,735 6,885,735
Other income W uma\arﬁgaé@‘éﬁﬁi‘,.&aee 24125000 12801506 (11,233.474)
Interest received . Ed—- 371,033,000 6,260,000 38,193,000 41,965,472 3,772,472
Total revenue from exchange 466,742,000 36,692,000 503,434,000 469,507,005 (33,926,995)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 207,037,000 23,097,000 230,134,000 205,140,723 (24,993,277)
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 523,741,000 16,006,000 539,747,000 408252576 (41,494,424)
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 5,177,000 (3,000) 5,174,000 5,703,614 529,614
Debt forgiven - - - 110,686,413 110,686,413
Donations - - - 2,451,356 2,451,356
Total revenue from non- 735,955,000 39,100,000 775,055,000 822,234,682 47,179,682
exchange transactions
Total revenue 1,202,697,000 75,792,000 1,278,489,000 1,291,741,687 13,252,687
Expenditure
Employee related costs (276,107,000)  (1,431,000) (277,538,000) (272 716,728) 4,821,272
Remuneration of councillors (18,513,000) - (18,513,000) (17,362,089) 1,150,911
Repairs and maintenance - - (50,243,216) (50,243,216)
Depreciation and amortisation (140,616,000) 9,002,000 (131,614,000) (135,027,979) (3,413,979)
Expenses from service . - - (4,256,257)  (4,256,257)
concession arrangements
Finance costs - (28,000,000) (28,000,000) (99,031,688) (71,031,688)
Debt Impairment (156,536,000) 48,232,000 (108,304,000) (148,433213) (40,129,213)

Coliection costs
Bulk purchases
Contracted Services
Cost of housing sold
General Expenses

Total expenditure

Operating surpius
Fair value adjustments
Actuarial gains/losses
Inventories losses

Surplus / {Deficit)

- - (71,482,037)

(71,482,037)

(319,126,000) - (319,126,000) (317,779,412) 1,346,588
(75,718,000)  (10,990,000) (86,708,000) (61,884,869) 24,823,131

- - - (14,061,750) (14,061,750)
(138,748,000)  (2,532,000) (141,280,000) (59,712,670) 71,567,330
(1,125,364,000) 14,281,000 (1,111,083,000)1,261,991,908) (150,908,908)
77,333,000 90,073,000 167,406,000 29,749,779 (137,656,221)
- . - 3,377,545 3,377,545

- - - 7,440,524 7,440,524

- - - 3,569,547 3,569,547

- - - 14,387,616 14,387,616
77,333,000 90,073,000 167,406,000 44,137,395 (123,268,605)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approy; i ents Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
. é et on comparable between final
AUC“ basis budget and
Figures in Rand By actual
LWV

5 —

Cash Flow Statement 2@23 -‘n- 3 0
perating activities south Africa

- al
Receipts Auditor Gener 2 _é%ﬂess Unit

Property rates | Mpuma\afl@;_@,:z

Cash flows from

.

4 373000 150,571,000 132423893 (18,147,107)

Services — 7 385,213,000 20,998,000 406,211,000 322,561,210  (83,649,790)
Grants 523,741,000 16,006,000 539,747,000 510,692,848 (29,054,152)
Interest income 932,000 2,201,000 3,133,000 - (3,133,000)
Other receipts _ 95,675,000 (28,465,000) 67,210,000 - (67,210,000)

1,138,809,000 28,063,000 1,166,872,000 965,677,951 (201,194,049)
Payments

Suppliers and Employee costs ~ (838,995,000) 35,585,000 (803,410,000) (652,655,582) 150,754,418

Net cash flows from operating 299,814,000 63,648,000 363,462,000 313,022,369 (50,439,631)
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plantand  (297,835,000) - (297,835,000) - 297,835,000
equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, - 1,441,000 1,441,000 - (1,441,000)
plant and equipment

Net cash flows from investing (297,835,000) 1,441,000 (296,394,000) - 296,394,000

activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 1,979,000 65,089,000 67,068,000 313,022,360 245,954,369
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1,020,000 7,642,000 8,662,000 - (8,662,000)
the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at 2,999,000 72,731,000 75,730,000 313,022,369 237,292,369
the end of the year

For reasons, please refer to note 60. Explanations are generally not given for variances under 10%, or where the value of the
balance is under R1 million. The variance on accumulated surplus is the result of all other variances, therefore this is not
discussed.

16
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Accounting Policies

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

e
R

Impairment testing .. —’”Audlted

The recoverable &mounts of non-cB’ﬁ-generating assets| have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations and faif values less costs to sefl. These(ga i4ns require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably
possible that assuniptions relating t residuai lues or usefll li i i

may then require a material adju'éﬁﬂgnt-tathe rying value

The municipality reviews and tests the car%pgprglpp\fﬂ\@as ts when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount ma taﬁm@e@a@ €. ags lugnlgss costs to sell are significantly affected by a number of factors
including demand, t g%} er wj;h;@qganBU;ﬁﬁiﬁ'ﬁ inflation rates. The value in use is generally reflected in the
remaining service pot Qlug[jhs—«assr-nj'w ich is estimated using the depreciated replacement cost, i.e. the current
reproduction or replacément cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. Impairment then typically results in a

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 19 - Provisions,

Useful lives of waste and water network and other assets

ater networks. This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated useful lives.

Post-retirement benefits

determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used
present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discou i

denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related pension liability.

The municipality
to determine the

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in
Note 16.

Effective interest rate

The municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Other

All assets and liabilities have been grossed up (i.e. not offset against each other), except where offsetting is required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP or where offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction or event.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of & building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:
. use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

20
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Property, plant and equipment ____,_,"’\E
e S
Property, plant gnd 'e_quipmen}\addﬁﬁg%le non-current Bssets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the

production or supply of goods or sWes, rental to others\ or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one périod. \

wh
The cost of an item of propertm numd eauﬂament is recognised as an asset when:
. it is pfiobable that“fitire economic benefits o service potential associated with the item will flow to the
municigality; and frica
*  the cosfof the it ﬁ%ﬂﬂéha ly, . \
Audifg}@wjﬁusmess nit_

Property, plant and eqq\@na’m@é%ﬁy_memreﬂ'ﬁmst.

-

The cost of an item (_)f property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

ltems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

22
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Accounting Policies”

DY
1.6 Site festoration and dismantling cogtvv\ \

The municjpality has an obligation to dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipment. Such
obligations re referred to as ‘decomisskmihéﬂ@go ation and similar liabilities’. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment ificludes the initiakesfimaté of the casts Gf dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, the phligation fOT»WHﬁtﬁ muni‘éip}ljﬁﬁum’éither when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used
the item during de%fb,eﬁod-for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

|

If the related asset is measured using the cost model:

(a) subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current
period;

(b) if a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit; and

(¢) if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the municipality considers whether this is an
indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication, the
asset is tested for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount, and any
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with the accounting policy on impairment of cash-generating assets
and/or impairment of non-cash-generating assets.

If the related asset is measured using the revaluation model:

(a) changes in the liability alter the revaluation surplus or deficit previously recognised on that asset, so that:
- a decrease in the liability (subject to (b)) is credited to revaluation surplus in net assets, except that it is
recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit on the asset that was previously
recognised in surplus or deficit
- an increase in the liability is recognised in surplus or deficit, except that it is debited to the revaluation
surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

(b) in the event that a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been recognised had the
asset been carried under the cost model, the excess is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit; and

(c) a change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any such revaluation is taken into account in determining the amounts to be taken to surplus or
deficit or net assets under (a). If a revaluation is necessary, all assets of that class are revalued.

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:

. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

. arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardiess of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the municipality; and
*  the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
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1.8 Heritage assets (continued)

An inalienable item-i*s;r.{ asset thmtﬁgpality is required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without consent. By g

Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset'$ net selling price and its value in use.
Recoverable service;amount is tgg%%heﬂof a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Value in use of a cakh&ﬁaq{e}{n@@qéﬁahﬁmvﬁf\%ﬁ% f the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or
cash-generating unit. i uni
g | mMpumalanga Business

Value in use of a noni:casn‘-generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.
1.9 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
. Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).
. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.
o It is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is;

. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
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1.9 Financial instruments (contj

or trﬂmjﬂ@dncial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or ilcurr; rincipall EWE\PU pose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term: or

- on |nitial recognition itisypart of a? lio of jdentified financial instruments that are managed together and for

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

- nontderivative finapgial s_etsnﬁ financial liatiilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at

fair value|at initial reco ’%‘oﬁ;ﬁnd

- finarjcial instruments that do not mee% ’t‘hcea

instruments at cost. General South AlNc

Auditor iness Unit

langa Bus!
Mpuma s
pume s = —
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

finition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial

Classification

Class Category
Trade receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables from non exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Investments Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereta:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Vat Payable Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Unspent conditional grants Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Employee benefit provisions Financial liability measured at amortised cost

% Initial recognition

The municipality recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The municipality recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
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1.9 Financial instruments {continued)

Derecognition +
|
Financial assets| YV\/\ |l

i
The municipality clerecognises,;ﬁnangiﬂ gssgatﬂ using trade {late accounting.

The municipality derecognises a financial asset only when:
L]

the cori trﬂ&!@ t@ﬂh@k{gﬁ éqssq:mﬁfmﬁa;@g ﬁ:nancial asset expire, are settled or waived:;
a transfers ther

*  the munic ano sparw s:.fbsitantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
*  the municipalily, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the municipality :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the
fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation
for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial
liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the municipality has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the municipality continues to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the municipality recognises any revenue on the
transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the
revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The municipality removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.
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1.10 Statutory receivables (continued)

Subsequent

asurement AUdlted ._l

The municipalily measures statu receivables after i%itial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the
initial measurerent of the receivable is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any:
. intergst or other charges that may, have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);

. impajrment lossesliand X . V\/\
. amoynts derecognised.

Accrued interest

Mpumaliangd : - .
Where the mun JQQ]MW#@FEB%‘OWT“E"UUT anding balance of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount
after initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the nominal interest rate.

Interest on statutory receivables is recognised as revenue in accordance with the policy on Revenue from exchange
transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers), whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipality is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulations, by-laws or similar means to levy
additional charges on overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in
"Accrued interest” above, as well as the relevant policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on Revenue from
non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impaired.

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:
o Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling, business
rescue or an equivalent.
e Itis probable that the debtor will enter sequestration, liquidation or other financial re-organisation.
. A breach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where
levied).
J Adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in
debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measures the impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the losses is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

In estimating the future cash flows, an municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in
future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the entity discounts the estimated future cash
flows using a rate that reflects the current risk-free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific to the statutory receivable, or group
of statutory receivables, for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previously recognised impairment loss is adjusted either directly or by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment
does not result in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying
amount of the receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.12 Inventories (continued)

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the | we;q qf t and current reéplacement cost where they are held for;
. distribution at no char@%% \‘nréc: ominal charge; for
® consuniption in the produ@gn process of goods fo be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable val4e is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated jcosts neces%&ﬂ&oqtﬁkeg}\é saﬁs, Wﬁ\ar‘ ge or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs fo acquire the asset on the reporting date.
Auditor General South Afica

The cost of inventories. ¢ mprsgsaf Bl costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their p_rﬁ’sﬁ”nﬁgmﬁm_andm_——j

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature
and use to the municipality.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.13 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon,

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:

. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
o the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.
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1.13 Impairmefit of cash-geﬁ&dﬁtﬁgsets (continued)

Recognition arid measurement (%Xividual asset)

If the recoverable amount ﬁ?ogz@slﬁbenar&ing gs‘sm ess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its redoverable amount. This reduction is an impfairment loss.
Africa |
An impairment loss is re 's@ém&ﬁ‘atety in surplus or deficit.
,b\u(‘f;?lQﬂl T g Business -
Any impairment loss M@M&_@Iﬁ_ﬁi @'E}n-geﬂera‘ﬁﬁg asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it
relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Cash-generating units

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a
cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-
generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality use management's best estimate of future price(s) that
could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:
the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
. the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
affected by the internal transfer pricing.

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change
is justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
. its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
. its value in use (if determinable); and
*  zero.

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit.

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-

cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit.
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1.14 Impairment of non-cash-generating.ass

Fair value less cosls to sell is the ‘amount obtainable fro
knowledgeable, willing parties, less thelCosts of disposal.

the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between

Recoverable service Bmount is the higher of a nOP-C&%-‘M ting asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either: .
. the period df time over which an as lc}gmpédféﬂa) e used by the municipality; or
. the number|ofrproduction-or simifar units expectadito be obtained from the asset by the municipality.
’________,._.l

Judgements made by mgjgb,enwata-m apﬁl'yl'r'fé"t-ﬁg-griteria to designate assets as non-cash-generating assets or cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

Assets that are used for administrative purposes and are otherwise interchangable are classified as non-cash-generating
assets.

Infrastructure and community assets are to provide services and are classified as non-cash generating assets.

Investment properties rented at market related rates are classified as cash-generating assets.

Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach;

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross service potential. This
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as
the current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the
basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the
municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services
the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for
goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.
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1.15 Employee benefits (continued) i

e
Vested employee benﬁﬂs’ are employge Behéfils that are not corlditional on future employment.

Composite social secufity programmes are’established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that ge,ww sideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entily’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as afyesult, the entity has gleated a valid expe#tation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities. {

e

nga - - — —

Short-term employee benefits—

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

. wages, salaries and social security contributions;

. short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

. non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

. as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

e as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitiement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits
for one or more employees.
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1.15 Employee henefits (conti

Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plahs are benefﬂ%s’éker%ﬂan defined cortribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses corggrise&ﬁéﬂ)erience a%mg%n?e ts (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what, hasastu @G e l-‘ fhel.effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined

benefit liability the iCipality. rebagriise __tl;ada4~gaﬁ1"s’5?1_5 losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they
occur. miJ ‘\APEL\%"?L'

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period.

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee
benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the
defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined
benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognises past service cost as an expense in
the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value of expected future payments required to settle the
obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The municipality accounts not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any
constructive obligation that arises from the municipality's’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive
obligation where the municipality has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive
obligation is where a change in the municipality's informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with
employees.

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The municipality measures the resulting asset
at the lower of;
the amount determined above; and
*  the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the pian or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which
reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.

The entity determines the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient
regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that
would be determined at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
. current service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
actuarial gains and losses;
past service cost;
the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and
the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability).

The municipality uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as
the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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1.16 Provisions and coﬂ@.ciﬁs_',/""._
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Provisions are rfécognised whent
¢ the municipality has a pfesent obligation as a rasult of a past event:;
* it is pjobable that an outflow of resouy dying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and L{?:W‘n
. a reliable estimate ‘tan-be-made’of'the obligaltior‘ld

The amount of a Lrovision is the best estimate of thef @xpeniditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. \

:_'_ rase— —
Where the effect lof ltirié value” of-“meney~15 material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required 10 settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmenits of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

J has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected:;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented:; and

i has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
. necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
. not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

J the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

. the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 45.
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1.16 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Levies _FH#-H AUd‘ted

Alevy is an outﬂow\Pf resources emb&Bﬂng econom;c benefils that is imposed by governments on entities in accordance with
legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulatlons) other than:

. those outflows of reso ‘l'nr |n the scope of other Standards, and

. fines or other penaltie 3 e§Ned for breaches of the legislation.

Government refers to|government, dove é}fg?%@ﬂﬁh iésfaidPsimilar bodies whether local, national or international.
Auditor Unit

The obligating event tLawbwmatﬁH’w pgxa.lavyd e activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by
the legislation.

The municipality does not have a constructive obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a future period as a
result of the municipality being economically compelled to continue to operate in that future period. The preparation of financial
statements under the going concern assumption does not imply that the municipality has a present obligation to pay a levy that
will be triggered by operating in a future period.

The liability to pay a levy is recognised progressively if the obligating event occurs over a period of time (i.e. if the activity that
triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by the legislation, occurs over a period of time).

If an obligation to pay a levy is triggered when a minimum threshold is reached, the corresponding liability is recognised when
that minimum threshold is reached.

The municipality recognises an asset if it has prepaid a levy but does not yet have a present obligation to pay that levy.
1.17 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments where the Municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources.

Capital commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability but are included in the disclosure
notes in the following cases:

* Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been awarded at
the reporting date, where disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP.

e Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has yet to be
awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.

s ltems are classified as commitments where the municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of resources.

¢ Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been received are disclosed
in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

e  Other commitments for contracts that are non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost, contracts should relate to
something other than the business of the municipality.

1.18 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.
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1.19 Revenue from ngg_-_exchanggﬁm (continued)
2

Exchange transactidns are transactiorig)in which one entity fieceives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value {primarily in S-(hWn of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange. -

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are aVailable to beneficiaries regardiess of whether or not they pay
taxes. ‘l\

Fines are economic benefits or service-potential Lé;&;émd—wéceivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a\consequgggg of the-bredch of laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available
to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches
of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.
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1.20 Investmentincome "
— pudited

Investment income is fecognised on a tlrwroportlon basis usifg the effective interest method.
1.21 Accounting by grincipals and agents ?.\/V\

Identification 2%23 -\\-

An agent is an entity the\t has been dcjeé\?%ﬁg\amthw éﬁfm?a piincipal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third p 'ﬁﬂ eguﬁnﬂsﬁd‘\ﬁjp thelbenefit of the principal.
; wuma anga

A principal is an entity th s-another entlty (an agent) through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in
terms of the arrangement.

The assessment of whether a municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a
principal or an agent.

50



Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.25 Irregular expendit fébﬁtiﬁbedAudited
Irregular expenditure is dccounted for in Ii%\Iwith all relating reqlirements, including, but not limited to, ruling Legislation,
Regulations, Frameworks) Circulars, Instruction Notes, Pr@tice Notgs, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

9023 -11- 30 XY

A segment is an activity of an entity; nera\ South Afnc_a \
o that generates dkmdvﬁ%%ﬁs or s—gm\icﬁ@gerltm\&rﬂ;luding economic benefits or service potential relating to
transactions be e%@qimﬁwﬁéﬁnmﬁrf
egularly TeViewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that
activity and in assessing its performance; and
e for which separate financial information is available.

1.26 Segment informatio

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met. Refer to note
59.

1.27 Budget information

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which
is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/07/2022 to 30/06/2023.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.28 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
person in their dealings with the municipality
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Figures in Rand ey 2023 2022

~ Audited

2. New standards and interpretatichy
2.1 Standards and nterpretatlons effectlve and pted ir) the current year

No new standards or interpretatio were lllopted in the current year. Directive 14 Application of Standards of GRAP by
Public Entities becameé effective, but is not appllcable to tPe municipality.

eral South
2.2 Standards and i %gglo%i%ged but-not yet effective
LA s

Standard! Interpretatiof: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
after
J Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
. IGRAP 21 The Effect of Past Decisions on Materiality 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
J IGRAP 7 (Revised) Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset Min 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
Fund Regquirement and Interact material impact
J GRAP 25 (Revised) Employee Benefits 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
. GRAP 104 (Revised) Financial Instruments 01 April 2025 Unlikely there will be a

material impact, however
this is still being assessed

The ASB indicates that the Guideline on The Application of Materiality to Financial Statements is not authoritative, but

application is recommended:; this is being reviewed to determine the impact on the financial statements and if these would
be desirable.
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Notes to f| nnué*ﬁﬁeadncial Statements

Figures in Rand\ Ll ‘\ 2023 2022

3. Investment property (¢

e \vv\\

Africa
The outcome of the fair value ac@gétﬂ‘enafsﬁﬁqxéa\‘c‘eg b@ lovi: \.

Aud %‘\ Ja Bnﬁﬂff
Mpuma= =—

Fair Value Adjustmenf"dalns 3,377,544 66 567 036

2023 2022

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.
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Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figuresin Rand __ it 2023 2022

——Auited
4. Property, plant and equipmerB(yontinued)
o  Computer Equipment: R6 %?3 _”_ 3 U ZW
* Motor Vehicles: R821 556

th Africa
e  Furniture, Fixtd ré%‘ég{l[ E]ﬁa""‘ rkeraéqi’ss?:ess Umt

Detailed descriptions, component types and Rand values assigned to each of the above written off assets can be found in
the Fixed Asset Register of the municipality.
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Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended-30-June-2023——

Notes to the Annual Finanfg\if_al Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

9. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Fines 1 578,105 1,055,677

Consumer debtors - Rates 64,611,287 58,791,154
= — — 65,189,392 59,846,831
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Figures in Rand ' 2023 2022
AUUTOT GENeral south Africa
10. Consumer debm“rﬁdjﬁg?géa}g4§0ﬁﬂﬁwﬁss Unit
Water
Current (0 -30 days) 6,514,568 4,500,339
31 - 180 days 7,136,770 8,510,516
181 - 360 days 6,327,001 5,084,834
361 - 720 days 7,251,506 7,165,805
720+ days 24,651,733 19,771,789
51,881,578 45,033,283
Sewerage
Current (0 -30 days) 2,748,395 2,802,223
31-180 days 5,179,635 4,824,797
181 - 360 days 4,605,127 3,264,932
361 - 720 days 4,091,327 4,080,063
720+ days 8,489,247 6,243,261
25,113,731 21,215,276
Refuse
Current (0 -30 days) 2,390,798 2,282,420
31 - 180 days 5,096,587 3,933,075
181 - 360 days 4,594 106 2,929,079
361 - 720 days 3,850,229 4,006,446
720+ days 9,105,163 6,545,913
25,036,883 19,696,933
Service Debtors
Current (0 -30 days) ggg?gg ggg?gg
31 - 180 days , ,
181 - 360 days 808,687 1,137,000
361 - 720 days 1,086,091 779,898
121 - 365 days 7,986,165 6,964,445
10,956,367 9,864,660
Rental Debtors
311800y 314,968 326,265
- ays , ,
181 - 360 days 231,214 292,242
361 - 720 days 311,324 300,699
720+ days 903,948 896,949
1,861,257 1,924,366
Land sales
Current (0 -30 days) 18 18
31 - 180 days 90 90
181 - 360 days 108 109
361 - 720 days 217 348
720+ days 6,552 5,933
6,985 6,498
11. VAT receivable
VAT 131,424,790 105,428,352
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T =

Figures in Rand =3Y 2023 2022

!
15. Consumer depositL QV\/\
|
|
1

Consumer deposits 20,330,726 19,133,784
Sundry deposits 119,519 110,052
' 20,450,245 19,243,836

16. Employee benefit obligations

The municipality provides a post-employment medical aid plan to some employees - this is a defined contribution plan; as
well as a defined benefit plan in the form of a long-service award.

Changes in the present value of the employee benefit obligations are as follows:

Opening balance 73,802,000 72,227,000
Contributions paid (5,579,476) (3,302,490)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 4,572,476 4,877,490

72,795,000 73,802,000

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current service cost 3,729,000 3,777,000
Interest cost 8,284,000 6,957,000
Actuarial (gains) losses (7,440,524) (5,856,510)

4,572,476 4,877,490
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Figures in Rand T ——
]

2023 2022

Audi =~
16. Employee benefit obligdtions (continued)

The Municipality offers employTees LSA for every five years of service cofnpleted, from five years of service to 45 years of
service, inclusive ] . M/\
Completed Service Lor:ﬁ Service Bonuses Description

(in years) (% af Annual Salary)

5 2% |' 4 8 #280.x.annual sjary
10 4% T —~40-1-250 X annuali'salary
15 8% 20/ 250 x annual salary
20,25,30,35 12% 30 /250 x annual salary
40 16% 40/ 250 x annual salary
45 18% 45/ 250 x annual salary

In estimating the unfunded liability for LSA of Msukaligwa Municipality a number of assumptions are required. GRAP 25
requires the actuarial assumptions to be unbiased (i.e. neither imprudent nor excessively conservative) and mutually
compatible (i.e. reflective of the economic relationships between factors).

The following assumptions were used:

Key assumptions

Discount rate 10.85% 10.87%
Consumer Price index 5.93% 6.33%
General earnings inflation rate (long-term) 6.93% 7.33%
Net effective discount rate 3.67% 3.30%
Average retirement age 62 62

Mortality during employment is based on the SA 85-90 tables.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
History of the liability 13,618,000 13,858,000 13,097,000 11,759,000 11,138,000

17. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority grant 1,237,255 392,062
Municipal disaster relief grant 1,500,000 -
Provincial Treasury Support Grant 1,213,240 -
Regional bulk infrastructure grant 40,073,191 501,422
Sport and recreation grant - National Lottery 700,000 700,000

44,723,686 1,593,484

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,593,484 -

Additions during the year 540,994,701 185,372,431

Income recognition during the year (497,864,499) (183,778,947)
44,723,686 1,593,484

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms
of government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; and

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised.
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Figures in Rand | B | 2023 2022
|
r

18. f 4" W

Revenue from operatirjg granbs }

Equitable share !p f 227,520,000 199,442,000

Expanded public works regramme grant == | 1,766,000 1,985,690

Financial managementgrant ———— 3,000,000 3,000,000

Local government sector education and training authority grant 310,507 196,000

Provincial Treasury Support Grant 6,786,760 -
239,383,267 204,623,690

Revenue from capital grants

Energy Effeciency Demand-Side Management Grant 4,000,000 -

Integrated national electrification programme - 10,000,000

Municipal infrastructure grant 57,052,250 52,856,100

Municipal infrastructure grant - PMU 3,002,750 2,781,900

Regional bulk infrastructure grant 134,814,309 200,578,578

Water services infrastructure grant 60,000,000 40,000,000
258,869,309 306,216,578
498,252,576 510,840,268

Conditional and unconditional

Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:

Conditional grants received 271,806,624 311,654,117

Unconditional grants received 227,520,000 199,442,000
499,326,624 511,096,117

Equitable share

Current-year receipts 227,019,000 198,537,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (227,520,000) (199,442,000)

Roll over not approved - EPWP - 588,000

Rollover not approved - RBIG 501,000 317,000

This grand funds the basic services for registered indigents as well as municipals operations.

Energy Effeciency Demand-Side Management Grant "

Current-year receipts 4,000,000 -

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4,000,000) -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

This grant is intended to provide subsidies to municipalities to implement energy efficiency and demand-side management

initiatives within municipal infrastructure in order to reduce electricity consumption and improve energy efficiency.

Expanded Public Works Programme

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 587,691

Current-year receipts 1,766,000 1,986,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,766,000) (1,985,691)
Withheld from Equitable Share - (588,000)
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MHahea

18. (continued) By

Local Government Sectdr Educatiory@hd Trpjoing ﬁu%r{RXra%t

Balance unspent at beginhing of year 392,062 136,213

Current-year receipts Auditor General South Africa ! 1,155,700 451,849

Conditions met - transferredmlfgyﬁ@éqaanga Business Unit (310,507) (196,000)
' 1,237,255 392,062

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

This grant was received from the Local government SETA institution for the training of municipal staff in various categories
of learning and skills development.

Sport and recreation grant - National Lottery

Balance unspent at beginning of year 700,000 700,000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
Provide explanations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information.

Municipal Disaster Relief Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 1,980
Current-year receipts 1,500,000 -
Withheld from Equitable Share - (1,980)

1,500,000 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

This is a disaster fund allocation that was received from National treasury per the Division of revenue act to fund the COVID
19 pandemic that started in March 2020.

Integrated National Electrification Programme

Current-year receipts - 10,000,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (10,000,000}

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
This grant is solely for electricity and to enhance the electricity network infrastructure.
Municipal infrastructure grant

Current-year receipts 57,052,250 52,856,100
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (57,052,250) (52,856,100)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

The municipal infrastructure grant is for the construction of roads, basic sewerage and water infrastructure to provide for
new, rehabilitation and upgrading of municipal infrastructure.

Municipal infrastructure grant - PMU
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19. Provisions

Reconciliation of prpvisions - 2%%3 '”‘ 3 0 Q*'V‘

Auditor General South Africa Opening  Change in Total
M | Busi Unit i Balance discount factor
Landfill site pumalanga pusiness Uni 81,032,532 13,386,844  95319,376

Reconciliation of provisions - 2022

Opening Change in Total
Balance discount factor
Landfill site 73,430,066 8,502,466 81,932,532

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites relates to the legal obligation, in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum
Resources Development Act, 2002 (Act No. 28 of 2002), whereby the municipality is required to execute the environmental
management program to restore the landfill sites at Ermelo, Breyten, Davel, Lothair and Chrissiesmeer to comply with the
permit requirements.

The provision was determined by an independent expert as at 30 June 2023 and approximates the discounted expected
future cash flows using reasonable estimation techniques. The discount rate used for the landfill sites is based on a bond
rate that matures as close as possible to the future date of the rehabilitation. The final rehabilitation of the landfill sites are
expected to be over a period of 18 years, being the estimated useful lives of landfill sites. No uncertainties were listed in
the engineer's report. The certainty and the timing of the outflow of these liabilities are uncertain and the amounts disclosed
are the possible outflow amounts.

The value of the provision is based on the expected future cost to rehabilitate the various sites. The cost of such property
includes the initial estimate of the costs of rehabilitating the land and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation
for which a municipality incurs as a consequence of having used the property during a particular period for landfill purposes.
The municipality estimates the useful lives and makes assumptions as to the useful lives of these, assets, which influence
the provision for future costs.

Key assumptions used:
Total area expected to be rehabilitated: 179 595 square metres (2021: 179 596 square metres)
Average rate per square metre: R563 excl. VAT (2021: R432 excl. VAT)

The area to be rehabilitated can be reconciled to the different sites as follows:

Ermelo : 109 370 square metres
Breyten : 38 041 square metres
Davel : 8 051 square metres
Lothair : 20 081 square metres

Chrissiesmeer : 4 052 square metres

Each of the landfill sites has adequate footprint and airspace available for the disposal of solid waste until at least 2024,
except for Lothair.

Lothair:

The Lothair landfill site has ceased to operate. Closure works have not yet commenced despite there being a limit of 3
years for this activity to commence. Based on historical evidence, the Lothair landfill operated as communal dump (as
opposed to a sanitary landfill). Waste disposal was generally contained to a specific area and intermittently covered. it
should be noted that the site has not been developed within the area specified in the waste licence. It is therefore assumed
that the footprint of the waste pile is as per evidence in historical imagery and that the Municipality will amend the
coordinates of the site in the closure licence.
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25. Property rates 3 0 W
2023 -%-
Rates levied
th Africa

Agricultural Auditor Genefa‘ 89"' Unit 20,102,007 19,146,475

Business and cprgerciglalanga Business — 78,055,924 70,042,341

Public benefit ofganisations.——" 167,592 164,147

Public service purposes 25,409,352 23,571,833

Public service infrastructure 57,434 54,351

Residential 74,520,216 63,192,944

Vacant stands 6,828,197 7,653,577

205,140,722 183,825,668

Valuations

Agriculture 8,959,876,000 8,960,056,000

Business and commercial 3,224,526,800 2,949,225 700

Municipal 938,803,300 911,614,800

Public benefit organisation 299,644,500 300,444,500

Public service infrastructure 51,685,700 50,873,200

Public service purposes 991,023,300 992,523,300

Residential 8,805,281,100 8,801,538,100

Vacant stands 304,534,000 322,264,000
23,575,374,700 23,288,539,600

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every 4 to 5 years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July
2021. Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to
alterations and subdivisions. The new valuation roll reflects the changes in classification (particularly on state owned
properties) in terms of the Municipal Property Rates Amendment Act.

A general rate of 0.9975 (2022: 0.9500) is applied to property valuations to determine assessment rates. Rebates of 10%
(2022: 15%) plus R15000 impermissible rates, section 17(1)(h) of the MPRA, are granted to residential and state property
owners.

Rates are levied on an annual basis with the final date for payment being 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022). Interest at 0.542%
per month (2022: 0.833%) is levied on rates outstanding.

The current general valuation was valid until 30 June 2023, however this has been extended by another two years to 30
June 2025.
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— fr""~ul"3 T~
29. Employee related costs
Acting allowarices Sg W\ \ 1,338,533 1,508,828
Basic '\ 142,062,624 134,839,534
Bonus \ 11,846,699 10,879,705
Car allowance \ 10,620,794 10,833,596
Cell and data allpwances 2 e 871,685 155,270
COID levy Y ) 1,997,432 1,188,888
Group Insurance| T """ 2,589,441 2,370,931
Housing benefits and allowances 486,380 659,602
Leave expense 2,305,594 480,642
Long service awards 2,284,962 1,167,000
Medical aid company contributions 13,698,976 13,031,943
Bargaining council 78,667 69,631
Overtime payment 23,546,734 22,859,457
Pension Fund 28,275,768 25,752,560
Post-retirement medical aid 2,547,937 2,610,000
SDL 2,229,744 2,084,285
Shift and standby allowance 13,869,554 13,539,413
UIF 1,298,339 1,238,724
Ward committees 3,067,500 1,830,000
265,017,363 247,100,009
Municipal Manager - M Kunene
Annual Remuneration 853,527 -
Car Allowance 151,575 -
Phone Allowance 26,371 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 172,728 -
1,204,201 -

Mr M Kunene was appointed to the position of municipal manager on 12 August 2022,

Prior to this, Mr S| Malaza was appointed acting municipal manager on 26 February 2021 to November 2021 (See Director
of Community and Social Services below). Mr BC Sibeko was appointed acting municipal manager from November 2021 to
February 2022 (See below). Mr CJ Lisa was appointed on 28 February 2022 to be acting municipal manager (See below).

Acting Municipal Manager - CJ Lisa

Annual Remuneration
Phone Allowance
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Mr S| Malaza was appointed acting municipal manager on 26 February 2021 to November 2021 (See Director of

253,847 512,933
5,000 10,000
2,943 5,948

261,790 528,881

Community and Social Services below). Mr BC Sibeko was appointed acting municipal manager from November 2021 to
February 2022 (see below). Mr CJ Lisa was appointed on 28 February 2022 to be acting municipal manager. Mr Lisa was

appointed by COGTA and, therefore, does not hold another post within the municipality.

Acting Municipal Manager - BC Sibeko

Annual Remuneration

Car Allowance

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Acting Allowance

82

174,130
43,999
51,281

110,226
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29. Employee reIe;ted‘EB's'Eonh%ét@d

Director - Corporate Services - PS NElulza

Annual Remunerati 2023 -1\ 10 ?4/\/\ 853,250 800,782

Car Allowance 181,575 180,000

Phone Allowance frica 24,000 20,000

Contributions to UIF, dlcal and &eéﬁgmj'pﬁisuth ALS\C 214.570 213.045
ess Unit 1,273,395 1,213,827

Movn“ a\aﬂgﬂ usine=> —— ks :

[t
Director - Community and Social Services - MS Lukhele

Annual Remuneration 418,113
Car Allowance 135,000
Phone Allowance 14,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 110,828

677,941

Mr Lukhele was appointed as Director - Community and Social Services on 1 December 2022.

Acting Director - Community and Social Services - FS Maseko

Annual Remuneration 196,558
Car Allowance 43,717
Phone Allowance 7,000
Standby and Housing Allowance 65,936
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 54,904
Acting Allowance 37,283

405,398

Mr Maseko was appointed to act in the position of Direct - Community and Social Services for the period

Mr Maseko does not otherwise hold an executive position in the municipality and, therefore, his remuneration above is for

the period in which he was acting as Director - Community and Social Services only.

Director - Community and Social Services - S| Malaza

Annual Remuneration 226,076 742 922
Car Allowance 8,000 96,000
Phone Allowance 2,000 23,592
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 13,610 146,455
Acting Allowance - 283,076

249,686 1,292,045

Mr S| Malaza was acting in the role of Municipal Manager/Accounting Officer for the second half of the 2021 year and part

of 2022.
Mr Malaza left the municipality on 31 July 2022.

Director - Technical Services - ZP Duma

Annual Remuneration 39,359
Car Allowance 20,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 731

60,090

Ms Duma was appointed to the post of Director - Technical Services on 12 June 2023.
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30. Remuneration of counciliors

Executive Mayor 983,048 616,939

Speaker 795,508 521,428

Chief Whip s\ 755.239 612,354

Mayoral Committge Members 3,752,747 2,530,278

Councillors 1 11,075,547 11,211,685

\ 17,362,089 15,492,684

Additional information———

The details for individual councillors are set out in the related parties note 46.

31. Debtimpairment

Allowance for impairment - Consumer debtors 142,361,895 116,170,093

Allowance for impairment - Traffic fines 5,876,033 4,950,150

Bad debts written off 195,285 -
148,433,213 121,120,243

32. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 134,981,850 138,258,281

Intangible assets 46,129 46,129
135,027,979 138,304,410
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2023

2022

33. Impairme ;{l:)srs (contip‘&etdited

The condition of a trailer deteriora@tyto such an extent thjat the municipality decided to impair this asset.

Detailed descrigtions, compagrits types and p

of the municipality.

34. Loss on disposal of assets

1 nea B
Losses on Property‘plaht'aid gqUigment ~

Wh  of the assets impaired are available in the Fixed Asset Register

|

g e (13,888,871) (26,545,998)
Loss on Heritage Assets - (17,300)
Gains / (loss) on Investment property (172,878) (1,606,764)
(14,061,749} (28,170,062)
35. Repairs and Maintenance
Plant, Machinery and Equipment 8,106,294 4,073,991
Motor Vehicles 5,063,437 2,903,215
Buildings 212,611 318,712
Electrical 19,757,659 9,261,666
Roads 1,869,390 3,832,968
Sanitation 626,742 695,079
Water Supply 14,607,083 8,869,806
50,243,216 29,955,437
36. Finance costs
Trade and other payables 82,495,226 82,617,469
Finance leases 39,215 125,346
Land fill site 8,213,247 6,715,630
Employee benefits 8,284,000 6,957,000
99,031,688 96,415,445
37. Inventory Consumed
Water consumed 71,482,037 77,947,143

Other consumables are generally utilised for repairs and maintenance.

The following is the value of water sold versus the value lost; for more information, please refer to the note on distribution

losses 55.

Water sold 17,461,404 24,644,322

Water losses 54,020,633 53,302,821
71,482,037 77,947,143
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39. Genéral expenses
P
Advertisin 442 108 233,035
Auditors remuneration 6,663,173 6,375,576
Bank chargdes 2,606,037 2,358,284
Cleaning 2,276,571 636,716
Communicégtion andrstationery e 7,232,276 5,134,287
Community support 101,000 25,400
Consulting and professional fees 1,385,353 4,890,001
Consumables 12,004 48,640
Conferences and seminars 108,637 90,264
Fuel and oil 18,317,531 9,265,468
Insurance 5,459,914 4,847,105
Internal Billing - (1,901,326)
Materials - Covid-19 32,060 431,930
Protective clothing 1,999,555 1,156,058
Software expenses 6,777,164 7,943,022
Staff welfare 2,310,201 2,324,400
Subscriptions and membership fees 3,253,074 2,683,068
Training 496,452 520,910
Travel - local 3,635,793 2,810,625
VIP toilets 6,603,767 -
69,712,670 49,873,463

The VIP toilets were built for use by the community, but are on privately owned land, therefore the municipality does not

have control of these, therefore these were raised as an expense.

40. Fair value adjustments

Investment property (Fair value model)

90

3,377,545

66,567,036




Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand—— A, ,01L€0 | 2023 2022

BY
. ,?'3 _“— 30 ?,\/\/\

0
Financial ris manageméh

42. Risk management

. \
The municipallty is exposed.{o % i tﬁﬁﬂﬁ%g‘\r?s?(s‘ market risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk
and price risk, ?\qﬁdﬁbﬁlﬁﬁﬁl |tﬁj§§iﬁggﬁe\é_@‘_qgre is limited to the the municipality’s management thereof. Due to
largely, "non-tr iv\ﬂ g"\a’(fa’éﬂl_i___ﬁﬂnd-lhe"ﬁay in which they are financed, municipalities are not exposed to the
degree of finantia 5K by Business entities. Generally, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating
or changing risks in entities that apply GRAP. Generally, financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day
operational activities and are not held to manage the risks facing the municipality in undertaking its activities.

The Budget and Treasury Office monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal
policies and procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and
procedures is reviewed by internal auditors on a continuous basis, and by external auditors annually. The municipality does
not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risk, reports monthly
to the municipality’s audit committee, an independent body that monitors the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the municipality will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The Municipality
managing of liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidity risk is managed by
ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash flow requirements.
Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and, if required, additional
new arrangements are established at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are met. The tables detail the
municipality’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the municipality can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

At 30 June 2023 Less than 1 Between 2 and Over 5 years
year 5 years

o Payables from exchange transactions 1,572,148,720 - -

At 30 June 2022 Less than 1 Between 2 and Between 2 and
year 5 years 5 years

e Payables from exchange transactions 1,439,945,514 - -

L Finance lease obligation 1,219,090 - -

92



Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302) . ...—

Annual Financial-Statements forthe year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2023 2022

Figures ’p Rand = 29 (; 1‘;\vn‘ \\

43, Finlncial instruments disclosure \
Categorie\s offinancial'instruments D5
oz | MpumaETET ——
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits

2022

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits
Finance lease obligation

94

At amortised cost
167,834,179
78,704,967

311,728,538

At amortised cost
(1,572,148,720)
(20,450,245)

(1,592,598,965)

At amortised cost
145,467,135
9,673,827

155,140,962

At amortised cost
(1,439,945,514)
(19,243,836)
(1,179,875)

(1,460,369,225)
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Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023

2022

—

46. Related parties ——

Members of key management

Municipal Manager & Accounting Officer at the date of sighing - Mr. M Kunene
Appointed 12 Algust 2022. %\g\/‘

Acting MunicipallManager & Ageounting Officer - 28 February - 11 Mr. CJ Lisa
August 2022 \

Acting Municipal Manager & Accounting Offigerii26\February 2021 - 26 Mr. Sl Malaza
November 2021 !

Chief Financial Officer Mr. PJ Nhlabathi
Acting Chief Finangial Officer - 1.Jufe 2020 - Mr. SM Phiri
Director - Corporate-S&tvices Mr. PS Mabuza
Director - Community and Social Services Mr. MS Lukhele
Director - Planning and Economic Development Ms. H Maganya
Director - Technical Services Ms. ZP Duma
Executive Mayor Clir. MP Nkosi
Speaker Clir. NS Xaba
Chief Whip ClIr. PT Sibeko
Mayoral Committee Clir. TJ Madlala
Clilr. BG Motha
Clir. TC Motha

Clir. EC Msezane
Clir. SE Ngovene
Councillors Clir. D.V.F Arnoldi
Clir. J.D.A Blignaut
Clir. Z Breydenbach
ClIr. S.5.S Buthelezi
CliIr. 8.8 Cindi
ClIr. S.P Khalishwayo
Cilr. B.I Mabuza
Clir. $.M Mabuza
ClIr. V.C.N Madini
Clir. T.J Maduna
Clir. B.A Mahlalela
Cllr. M.S Malaza
Cllr. V.J Maseko
Clir. S.C Mathebula
Cllr. M.M Mkhaliphi
CllIr. B.L Ndlazi
Clir. M.F.J Ndlovu
Clir. S.F Ngwenya
Clir. L.L Nhlapho
CliIr. B.J Nkosi
Clir. M.Z Nkosi
Clir. N.R Nkosi
Clir. T Nkosi
Clir. M.A Nzimande
Clir. R.T Nzimande
Cilr. J.J Scholtz
CilIr. P.H Sibiya
Clir. M.R Yende
Clir. T.P Zulu
Clir. Z.E Zulu
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Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand B 2023 2022
46. Related parties (continued) \
Management tlass: Councillors \n
2023 \ ?v\/\ \

\ Afnual | Car Allowance Contributions Cellphone and Total

"-H Remuneration to Medical Aid Data

\ i and Pension  Allowance
DVF Arnoldi | z 193,581 74,206 31,5622 44,400 343,709
JDA Blignaut 178,723 94,838 112,322 44,400 430,283
Z Breydenbach 195,319 74,206 31,798 44,400 345,723
SSS Buthelezi 196,220 75,218 31,954 44,400 347,792
SS Cindi 330,708 - 52,681 44,400 427,789
SP Khalishwako 330,184 - 52,598 44,400 427,182
Bl Mabuza 193,582 74,206 31,522 44,400 343,710
SM Mabuza 265,194 - 42,288 44,400 351,882
VCN Madini 262,097 - 41,797 44,400 348,294
TJ Maduna 258,749 - 41,266 44,400 344 415
BA Mabhlalela 228,760 - 77,362 44,400 350,522
MS Malaza 258,108 - 41,164 44,400 343,672
VJ Maseko 248,031 95,078 40,331 44,400 427,840
SC Mathebula 258,109 - 41,164 44,400 343,673
MM Mkhaliphi 330,708 - 52,681 44,400 427,789
BL Ndlazi 258,749 - 41,266 44 400 344,415
MFJ Ndlovu 215,883 48,559 34,861 44,400 343,703
SF Ngwenya 215,883 48,559 34,869 44,400 343,711
LL Nhlapho 211,742 48,559 34,198 43,800 338,299
BJ Nkosi 258,109 - 41,164 44,400 343,673
MZ Nkosi 194,463 73,193 31,659 44,400 343,715
NR Nkosi 248,031 95,078 40,335 44,400 427,844
T Nkosi 193,581 74,206 31,532 44,400 343,719
MA Nzimande 256,493 77,898 41,747 44,400 420,538
RT Nzimande 257,494 - 41,067 44,400 342,961
JJ Scholtz 193,581 74,206 31,522 44,400 343,709
PH Sibiya 321,351 - 51,196 44,400 416,947
MR Yende 193,581 74,206 31,632 44,400 343,719
TP Zulu 330,993 - 52,726 44,400 428,119
ZE Zulu 260,290 - 41,510 44,400 346,200

7,338,297 1,102,216 1,303,634 1,331,400 11,075,547
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(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Ann uaﬂknanclalmnts

Figures in Rand By 2023 2022
46. Related parties|(continued)
Out-going council mfembers Annual Cfr Allowance Contributions Cellphone and Total
Remuineration to medical aid data allowance
l and pension
| D fund

JDA Blignaut R —— 44 220 25,144 32,133 15,774 117,271
MJ Blose 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
Z Breydenbach 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
ZK Dhiudhiu 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
GS Greyling 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
Bl Jiyane 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
LNV Kubheka 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
DJ Litau 61,785 32,268 36,164 15,774 145,991
FJ Mabasa 66,208 25144 10,082 15,774 117,208
D Mabunda 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
Bl Mabuza 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
TJ Madlala 84,967 32,268 12,916 15,774 145,925
ME Madonsela 67,405 32,268 30,528 15,774 145,975
NH Magagula 84,967 32,268 12,916 15,774 145,925
LS Mahlangu 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
LA Maseko 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
MZM Mashiane 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
VV Mazibuko 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
LD Mndebele 84,967 32,268 12,916 15,774 145,925
PF Moloyi 66,208 25144 10,082 15,774 117,208
TC Motha 84,967 32,268 12,916 15,774 145,925
BNN Ndiovu 52,818 25,144 23,510 15,774 117,246
DM Nkambule 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
T Nkosi 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
ZJ Nkosi 84,967 32,268 12,916 15,774 145,925
JJ Nzimande 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
M Sibeko 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
PT Sibeko 84,967 32,268 12,995 15,774 146,004
BJM Sithole 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
HF Swart 66,208 25,144 10,082 15,774 117,208
MR Yende 66,208 25144 10,082 15,774 117,208

7,184,464 1,385,079 1,289,864 1,348,994 11,208,401

Refer to note Remuneration of councillors 30.
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Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023

2022

‘L; f'th‘i"l 1
A |

TeA AT,

By

48. Going concern

The annual finangal statemen%}ffava en;g) gﬁ basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This

basis presumes that funds will be available
liabilities, contlngentob atlons and commltments WI|| occuf in the ordinary course of business.

eneral Sout

re operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of

The senior managelﬁé g éj tcﬁ/ onstituted as all vacant director posts were filled by year end.
However, there ar ‘r%sl'ﬁ‘l 4 distress.

The municipality has material contingent liabilities of R126,036,192, as well as trade and other payables of
R1,572,148,720against receivables of R233,023,571, which may pose a risk to future operations.

Although, at 30 June 2023, the municipality had an accumulated surplus of R 1,494,273,518 and that the municipality's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 1,494,273,518, this is largely due to non-current assets such as Property, plant and
equipment, rather than working capital. In terms of current assets and liabilities, the Municipality has net liabilities of

R1,174,444,154(2022: R1,134,147,852).

The Municipality reported a surplus of R 44,137,39566,521,774 for the period (2022: surplus R 16,362,248); however, this

includes debt forgiven by DCSSL of R109,226,728, which was an extraordinary transaction.

The ability of the Municipality to continue its operations for the foreseeable future is supported by the following:

Approved budget for the Medium Term Expenditure Revenue Framework ending 2023

Approved Division of Revenue Act with estimated allocation of equitable share and capital the next 3 years
(2023/24FY R 252 878 000, 2024/25FY R 265, 269, 000, 2025/26FY R277,737,000)

The municipality has approved a funding plan which is intended to restore the financial viability of the municipality.

49. Events after the reporting date

Management was not aware of any circumstance or event that would be deemed relevant for reporting after reporting date.

50. Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 413,255,590 276,339,946
Opening balance as restated 413,255,590 276,339,946
Current year transactions

Add: Expenditure identified - current 235,125,294 136,915,644
Closing balance 648,380,884 413,255,590

Management submitted the unauthorised expenditure to MPAC for investigation, the investigation at the reporting date was

still in progress.
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(Registration nlimber MP302),
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Notes to the Annual%fnancial Sta

Figures in Ranf

§3. Additional disclosure-in terms of Municipal Finaince Management Act (continued)
|

Payroll taxes and'levies :

Opening balance
Current year fee
Amount paid - current year

2023 2022
3,227,295 3,310,458
41,929,271 39,965,697
(41,738,940) (40,038,860)
3,417,626 3,227,295

The unpaid amounts above represent June declarations, which are typically paid in the first week of July as permitted by

SARS.

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Opening balance

Current year fee

Amount paid - current year
Amount paid - previous years

VAT

VAT receivable
VAT payable

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year.

5,291,483 -
72,990,983 68,207,218
(72,990,983) (62,915,735)
(5,291,483) -

- 5,291,483
644,248,832 528,621,478
(5612,824,042) (423,193,126)
131,424,790 105,428,352




Msukaligwa Local Municipality
(Registration number MP302)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

e
54. Deviation fro _ anagement regylations

Audit

Paragraph 12{1)(d)(i) of Govern t gazette No. 27634 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management
policy must provide for the proc ent of goods and sgrvices by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 pf the same gazette ﬂa.te%tﬂat%é(a\g:ou ting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in

certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasbns for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting offiter and includes a note to the an ; ial stat ts.
unting u ﬁqr}gﬁl‘@'@qma statements

Auditor General oo

Janga Busingss -«
]‘M

Supplier name’ ion~""" Reason for Description Amount
' date deviation
MMN Engineering 08/07/2022 Impractical Repair and maintenance of Waste collection 215,757
Truck, Front loader , Bomang roller and
TLB
Gilbert Mining 14/07/2022 Impractical Repair and maintenance of transformers 574,115
MMN 03/08/2022 Impractical Emergency purposes, the company is a sole 31,992
Engineering provider chlorine, cylinders and chemical for
water
TG And KZ 09/09/2022 Impractical Repair and maintenance of the blockages of 337,280
Ncongwene sewer line due to line being silted.
Gilbert Mining 22/11/2022 Impractical Supplies of materials for repairs 877,017
Gilbert Mining 30/11/2022 Impractical Supplies for materials for repairs of 300m 485,001
x150mm x4 core PVC WTP
Gilbert Mining 30/11/2022 Impractical Supplies of materials for repairs 574,115
Gilbert Mining 15/07/2022 Impractical Supplies of materials for repairs 18,354
Gilbert Mining 15/07/2022 Impractical Supplies of materials for repairs 17,002
Kagwebisano 28/11/2022 Impractical Repair of low voltage (LV) power line at 376,798
Supplies And Industrial Street
Service
CPT Limited TA 21/07/2022 Impractical Advert for the position of call/contact centre 4617
Highvelder agent
CPT Limited TA 10/08/2022 Impractical Public notice for the amendments to the 2,052
Highvelder 2022/23 IDP
CPT Limited TA 02/09/2022 impractical Newspaper public notice for the 2,564
Highvelder IDP/BUDGET/PMS process plan for 2023/24
CPT Limited TA 05/09/2022 Impractical Newspaper public notice for the IDP 5,129
Highvelder community consultative programme
CPT Limited TA 04/08/2022 Impractical Notice for small medium and micro enterprise 2,564
Highvelder workshop
CPT Limited TA 13/07/2022 Impractical Advert for rates determination 3,078
Highvelder
Truvelo 13/02/2023 Impractical Procurement of prolaser machine 5,363
Manufacturers Pty
Ltd
Truvelo 28/11/2022 Impractical Prolaser machine training 16,000
Manufacturers Pty
Ltd
CPT Limited TA 20/06/2023 Impractical Advertisement of various items by the 32,628
Highvelder municipality
CPT Limited TA 05/06/2023 Impractical Advert of promulgation of resolution of levying 4,540
Highvelder rates
CPT Limited TA 09/03/2023 Impractical Advertisement of various items by the 6,525
Highvelder municipality

3,592,491
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Figures in Rand

2023

2022

57. Prior-year adjustments

Presented below are those items contained in t
that have been affected by pnor-year dju
r’n nt§t rgu:

credits as negative so that th
\
Statement of financial position

2022 ‘\

Current Assets

Inventories

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

VAT receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Heritage assets

Finance lease obligation

Payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits

Employee benefit obligation

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Employee benefit obligation

Provisions

Accumulated surplus

esnt of financial position, and statement of financial performance
blt balances or transaction totals are reflected as positive and

As previously
reported

13,003,712
146,660,286
59,810,828

115,462,266
9,661,537

180,113,008
2,537,476,313
61,916
174,895
(1,179,875)
(1,574,804,067)
(19,243,836)
(5,605,000)
(1,337,635)
(68,197,000)
(81,932,532)
(1,310,124,816)

respond W|th the related journal entries):

Correction of
error

(1,193,151)
36,003

(10,033,914)
12,290

(1,731,500)
18,318,872

134,858,554
(255,849)

(140,011,305)

DIFFERENCE

Restated

13,003,712
145,467,135
59,846,831

105,428,352
9,673,827

178,381,508
2,555,795,186
61,916
174,895
(1,179,875)
(1,439,945,514)
(19,243,836)
(5,605,000)
(1,593,484)
(68,197,000)
(81,932,532)
(1,450,136,121)
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022

§7. Prior-year adjustmerits (continued)
Reclassifications
The following reclassifications adjustment occurred:

Reclassification 1

i 1

The balance of the Fleet Card Was\allocated to-Trads and other payables under Payables from Exchange Transactions,
however, this card tends to have a debit balance at any given time, therefore, this was realiocated to Receivables from
Exchange.

Statement of Financial Position

Receivables from Exchange transactions 401,015
Payables from Exchange Transactions (401,015)

Reclassification 2

Water inventory consumed was shown as Bulk Purchases; although this has been the standard disclosure, this is not fully
compliant with GRAP and, therefore, this was reallocated. As a result, Inventory consumed was understated by
R77,947,143 and Bulk purchases was overstated by this amount.

Statement of Financial Performance

Inventory Consumed 77,947,143
Bulk Purchases (77,947,143)

Reclassification 3

Part of connection fees for electricity were incorrectly mapped to service revenue; as such, Other income (connection fees)
was understated by R660,257, and Services Charges was overstated by this amount.

Statement of Financial Performance

Service Charges 660,257
Other income (Connection fees) (660,257)
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i Audited

58. Prior period errofs (continued)

Statement of Financial Position q WA |

Payabies from Exchan&e Transactions | (1,899,813)

Property, plant and equipment .i 228,993

Statement of Financial Performance |

Repairs and Maintenante ! 512,942

Contracted Services | | 1,114,387

General Expenses 26,620
(16,871)

Error 5

Employee related costs for a number of new employees were not set up correctly in the Payroll system, resulting in them
being posted to Payables from Exchange - Employee related payables and accruals. As a result, Employee Related Costs,
Remuneration of Councillors, General Expenses and Payables from Exchange were understated.

Statement of Financial Position

Payables from Exchange Transactions (247,663)
Statement of Financial Performance

Employee Related Costs 244 242
Remuneration of Councillors 3,283
General Expenses 138
Error 6

A number of Eskom invoices were not raised correctly, particularly in terms of VAT treatment. As a result, VAT receivable
was overstated by R4,568,523; Payables from Exchange transactions was overstated by R5,239,576, and Bulk Purchases
was overstated with R671,053.

Statement of Financial Position

VAT Receivable (4,568,523)
5,239,576

Statement of Financial Performance

Bulk Purchases (671,053)

Error7

All receipts relating to the LG SETA were recognised as income, however only R196,000 was spent in relation to this grant;
therefore, Unspent conditional grant and receipts was understated by R255,849, and Government grants and subsidies was
overstated by the same amount.

Statement of Financial Position

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (255,849)
Statement of Financial Performance

Government grants and subsidies 255,849
Error 8

During the 2023 asset verification, a number of errors were identified, particularly relating to the timing of disposals and land
not recognised. As a result, Property, plant and equipment was understated by R18,089,878, Investment property was
overstated by R1,731,500, Accumulated surplus understated by R27,328,221, Payables from Exchange understated by
R298,913, Loss on disposal of assets understated by R10,520,025, Depreciation and amortisation understated by
R662,644, Impairment understated by R86,087, Loss on Disposal of Assets understated by R10,520,025.
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58. Prior period errors (continued) :
rﬁ i3 -1- 38 ?V\/)

Statement of Financial Position

Receivables from Excha g&Tgl%sact' ns ) ) (1,921,436)
Payab|es from Exchang ugitor '1ene"a| South Afrl(la 602,247
Cash and cash equivalentslVipumalanga Business Unit 12,289
Accumulated surplus 1,306,900

Error 10
Invoices were identified in 2023 which related to the 2022 financial year; therefore Payables from exchange was

understated by R916,264, VAT Receivable was understated by R119,513, Contracted Services was understated by
R279,000, and General Expenses understated by R517,751

Statement of Financial Position

VAT Receivable 119,513

Payables from Exchange Transactions (916,264)
Statement of Financial Performance

Contracted Services 279,000
General Expenses 517,751

Error 11

Long standing differences between Receivables and Payables from Exchange Transactions (Receivables paid in advance)
and the debtors age analysis were cleared against accumulated surplus.

Statement of Financial Position

Receivables from Exchange Transactions 327,268

Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 36,003
Payables from Exchange Transactions (741,472)
Accumulated surplus 378,201

Error12

The decision was taken to clear unaliocated receipts annually to the Statement of Financial Performance, and to clear the
historical backlog (R3,623,859 in 2023 and R7,586,862 in 2022 and earlier) and cumbersome account number structure, so
that this balance can be managed more efficiently in future.

Statement of Financial Position

Payables from Exchange Transactions 11,210,721
Accumulated Surplus (7,586,862)
Statement of Financial Performance

Other Income (3,623,859)
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59. Segment infgrmation Aud,te&——"“*'-~~

General informatipn By

Identification of segments 5 ) 1- 3 ?h/\

The municipality has five major segments Imked to the pnmary services offered as this forms the basis for recording and
reporting informa Oﬂwmmwgg‘ﬁéc,pql% andé\‘r‘wtah external stakeholders.

Electricity is a key- &n&_%’fﬁ% L'En.q;,mpough slgrﬁ'cant infrastructure holdings, links electricity generation to
consumers, and, therefore, generatés"ecmm;che.ueﬁs and service potential to the community.

Water is a key service department, and, through significant infrastructure holdings, reticulates water to the community, and,
therefore, generates economic benefits and service potential to the community.

Sewerage is a key service department, and, through significant infrastructure holdings, removes and treats waste water,
and, therefore, generates economic benefits and service potential to the community.

The Community and Health department, which generates economic gains and service potential through refuse removal as
well as the management of community assets and areas, including libraries, parks and landfill sites. Incidental to its
activities, it generates fine revenue.

The Finance vote is administrative, however it generates economic benefits in the form of interest on invested funds, and
sundry income from the sale of tender documents, etc. Further, the administration of property rates is co-ordinated by the
finance department. The Finance department is responsible for most of the asymmetrical allocations in the segments:
expenses and assets are allocated to the segments, but the related payables, VAT and interest expenses are allocated to
the Finance department. Inventory is held under the Finance department.

The other segments are administrative in nature and any revenue generated by these is incidental to their operations: these
have been aggregated. Vehicles, road infrastructure assets, and office furniture and equipment make up the majority of
Property, plant and equipment not allocated to reportable segments.

The table below is exclusive of interdepartmental billings (which are offset under Expenses in the Statement of Financial
performance)..
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Figures in R

2023

2022

60. Budget

Statement of

Aooited
differences By

Financiall’f.rﬁc;’rn:?TSe3 U G v\/\

[V R

Auditor General South Africa
Mpumalanga Business Unit |
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60. Budget di ferences (c-dﬁ.ti-ﬁued)_—
Statement of financial position

1.16 - Inventorigs |

The stock on hand at year end was-Hi eBtlﬁan icipated; this is linked to the gain on inventory resulting from the stock
T PR

count. | :

1.19 - Consumer debtors |
These increased due to non-paymentby<ebters.

1.20 - Call investment deposits and Cash and cash equivalents
This is a result of grant funds received and not yet spent, particularly on the Regional Bulk Water Infrastructure grant.

1.21 - VAT receivable
This is a result of higher costs such as bulk purchases.

1.24 - Property plant and equipment
This is a result of the procurement of new fleet vehicles as well as on-going projects which were further along than
anticipated.

1.25 - Payables from exchange transactions
This relates to the higher cost of items such as bulk purchases, and lower repayments than anticipated due to non-payment
by debtors.

1.26 - Consumer deposits
There was an error in the amount budgeted, and this did not reflect the prior year balance correctly.

1.26 - Unspent conditional grants
This relates primarily to the Regional Bulk Water Infrastructure Grant which was unspent at year end.

1.27 - Provisions

This includes the employee benefits obligation and the landfill rehabilitation provision; these are inherently difficult to predict
due to the complexity of the calculations, and the increase in the landfill provision was far higher than the decrease in the
employee benefits obligations.

Statement of Cashflows

1.28 - Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash for property rates and consumer debtors was lower than anticipated in the budget.

Payments to suppliers were significantly iower due to cost curtailment as well as pressure created by lower receipts from
debtors.

1.29 - Net cash flows from investing activities
Spending on PPE was higher than anticipated due to projects being further along than anticipated, and the purchase of new
fleet vehicles.

1.30 - Net cash flows from financing activities
The budget did not reflect lease payments during the year
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